

Meeting recording:

https://us02web.zoom.us/rec/share/92ktpg2Dh0SbEOCQ2jm8od5ldduiL1hmDb4F SS Wgv6N q H-4mmGJ2N13vae8E.0kJ13FPgjDF2Bzie?startTime=1747092613000

Members Present: Steve Hannan, Kristine Amari, Mark Covington, Mike McGarity, Mariah Robertson and

Skye Anderson.

Staff Present: Laura Mayton

Guests: About 15 virtual attendees

Call to Order: 7:34pm

1. Board Introductions – Kristine Amari, Mark Covington, Steve Hannan, Mike McGarity, Mariah Robertson and Skye Anderson: The Board members introduced themselves.

2. Election of New Board Officers

- a. **Election of Village Board Chair:** Ms. Amari nominated Mr. Hannan for Village Board Chair. Mr. Hannan was elected Chair unanimously.
- b. **Election of Village Board Vice Chair:** Both Dr. Robertson and Ms. Anderson nominated Mr. Covington for Village Board Vice Chair unanimously.
- 3. Approval of Agenda: Ms. Amari made a motion to approve the agenda and Dr. Robertson seconded. Ms. Mayton requested to remove Howard County Police Citizens Advisory Council item from New Business. Dr. Robertson made a motion to approve the removal and Ms. Amari seconded. Ms. Anderson requested to add New Media Request to New Business, A. Ms. Amari made a motion to add Ms. Anderson's request and Dr. Robertson seconded. Dr. Robertson made a motion to approve the agenda, as amended. Ms. Amari seconded, and the amended agenda was approved unanimously.
- 4. Approval of April 26, 2025, Annual Meeting Minutes and April 28, 2025, Board Meeting Minutes: Ms. Amari made a motion to approve the April 26, 2025, Annual Meeting minutes. Ms. Anderson seconded. The minutes were approved unanimously. Ms. Amari made a motion to approve the April 28, 2025, meeting minutes. Dr. Robertson seconded and the meeting minutes were approved unanimously.
- 5. Board Update: Mr. McGarity spoke regarding the Hickory Ridge Village Center maintenance issues specifically including lights, masonry, and obstruction issues. Ms. Anderson also mentioned the need for a stop sign at the exit onto Quarterstaff Road. The Board discussed strategies to address the maintenance issues, including contacting the property manager and Howard Hughes for covenant enforcement. Ms. Amari asked Ms. Mayton to invite Mr. Reed to come and present to the new Board. Dr. Robertson shared a volunteer opportunity with Columbia Community Care. If residents are interested, please sign up via their Google doc at https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAlpQLSfl1fNWZeXPD7dvMzbxqkaiOX1mJEslg3TOcavopifmpkDnZw/viewform?pli=1

- 6. Resident Speak-Out: No comments were made.
- 7. **CA Board of Directors Report—Skye Anderson:** Ms. Anderson provided an update on recent CA meetings and the Books in Bloom event. Ms. Anderson, in lieu of monthly meetings between her and residents, will now pose a monthly question. The first question focuses on marketing and communication strategies for the Village. What works and what doesn't?

8. Board Organizational Tasks:

- **a.** Appointment of the Village Manager (Laura Mayton): Ms. Amari made a motion to reappoint Ms. Mayton as the Village Manager. Dr. Robertson seconded. The motion passed unanimously.
- **b.** Appointment of Board Designees (Laura Mayton & Tania Tavares): Ms. Amari made a motion to reappoint Ms. Mayton and Ms. Tavares as Board Designees. Mr. Hannan seconded. The motion passed unanimously.
- **c. Designation of Check Signers:** Mr. Covington, Mr. Hannan and Dr. Robertson volunteered for this role.
- **d.** Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Responsibility: Ms. Mayton asked and reminded the Board to please sign the electronic document.
- **e.** Acknowledgement of Conflict of Interest: Ms. Mayton asked and reminded the Board to please sign the electronic document.
- f. **Legal Representation of the Village with DARS Law:** The Board and Ms. Mayton discussed the need for legal representation and the decision to retain Ellen Throop as counsel when she moves to her new firm. Mr. Hannan made a motion to retain the Village's current attorney. Dr. Robertson seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

9. New Business:

a. Media Request: The Board discussed how to respond to a media request from Jess Nocera with The Banner regarding the Village Center decision. The Board agreed to address the maintenance issues at the village center rather than commenting on the court decision. Dr. Robertson made a motion for Ms. Mayton to draft an email that will then be sent to the reporter. Ms. Amari seconded. The motion passed unanimously.

10. Old Business: None

11. Manager Report—Laura Mayton: Ms. Mayton reminded residents and the Board about the Columbia Card to access CA facilities at reduced rates. The Election Committee will be making their report to the Village Board on Monday, June 23rd. Ms. Mayton shared information on Block Party grants and the process for requesting them.

12. Action Items

- a. Ms. Mayton will send the fiduciary responsibility and conflict of interest forms to the Board members.
- b. Ms. Mayton will draft the email response to Jess Nocera from the Baltimore Banner and send to the Board for final approval.
- **13. Adjournment:** Dr. Robertson made a motion to adjourn the meeting and Mr. McGarity seconded. The motion passed unanimously. The meeting adjourned at 8:24pm.

HICKORY RIDGE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC.

Conflict of Interests Policy

Purpose. The purpose of this Conflict of Interests Policy is to (i) guard against improper influence, (ii) set minimum standards for the ethical conduct of the Association's business, and (iii) protect the interests of the Hickory Ridge Community Association, Inc. as a tax-exempt entity.

Definitions. As used in this Conflict of Interests Policy, the following words shall have the following meanings:

"Association" means the Hickory Ridge Community Association, Inc.

"Board Committee" means any committee of the Board with decision making powers delegated by the Board of Directors.

"Board" means the Board of Directors of the Association, and includes all Directors of the Association, as well as the Columbia Association Representative, who is an ex officio member of the Board of Directors.

"Compensation" includes direct and indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors that are exceed \$50.00.

"Conflict of Interest" Among other things, a conflict of interest occurs when a member of the Board, officer, or key employee is in a position to influence the Association, its activities and decisions and such individual or a member of the individual's Family (defined below) may benefit personally or financially in some way from a transaction, decision, action, or relationship involving the Association. Conflict of interest includes but is not limited to, circumstances involving consideration of a matter or entering into a transaction, contract, or arrangement between the Association (and if Columbia Association Representative, the Association and/or the Columbia Association) and a person having a Financial Interest or engaging in a Prohibited Activity.

"<u>Family</u>" of an individual means his spouse, his brothers and sisters (whether by the whole or half-blood), parents and their spouses, children, and the spouses of children.

"<u>Financial Interest</u>" means an interest held by a person who, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family relationship has:

- a. An ownership or investment interest (other than ownership of shares in a publicly-traded mutual fund) in any person or entity with which the Association (and if Columbia Association Representative, the Association and/or or the Columbia Association) has a transaction, contract, or arrangement;
- b. A compensation arrangement with the Association (and if Columbia Association Representative, the Association and/or the Columbia Association) or with any entity or individual with which the Association (and if Columbia Association Representative, the Association and/or the Columbia Association) has a transaction, contract, or arrangement;
- A potential ownership or investment interest in or compensation arrangement with any entity or individual with which the Association (and if Columbia Association Representative, the Association and/or the Columbia Association) is negotiating a transaction, contract or arrangement; or
- d. A compensation arrangement with any entity or individual having a matter before or under consideration before the Board (and if Columbia Association Representative, the Association and/or the Columbia Association).
 - A Financial Interest is not necessarily a Conflict of Interest. A person who has a Financial Interest does not have a Conflict of Interest if the Board determines that a Conflict of Interest does not exist.

"<u>Interested Person</u>" means any (i) member of the Board, (ii) principal officer, (iii) key employee, or (iv) member of a Board ommittee with decision making powers delegated by the Board, who has a direct or indirect Financial Interest.

"Sanctions" includes, but is not limited to (a) a public reprimand or public censure (including, to the extent practical, a permanent posting of such reprimand or censure on the Associations' website, in the Association's newsletter, and on the Association's Facebook and Twitter); (b) requesting the violator recuse themselves from the discussion and vote on any matters giving rise to such violation, (c) requesting the resignation of the violator, and/or (d) calling for a vote of the Association members to remove the violator from office.

A. Policy

It is the policy of the Association to prohibit any member of the Board, Resident Architectural Committee ("RAC"), Architectural Committee ("AC"), and member of any other Board committee from voting on or participating in any matter which would create a conflict of interest or give the appearance of a conflict of interest, except when such vote or participation is in the exercise of an administrative duty which does not affect the disposition or decision with respect to that matter.

Because it is impossible to describe all situations which may constitute or give the appearance of a Conflict of Interest, the prohibitions included in this Policy are not intended to be exhaustive or all-inclusive.

Members of the Board and its committees, and Association staff have the duty to disclose any Conflict of Interest immediately upon becoming aware of a real or potential conflict, and no later than the time such matters come before the Board.

B. Construction and Implementation

The provisions of this Policy are intended to be broadly construed in accordance with the purpose of this Policy.

The Board shall be responsible for implementing this Policy and advising persons as to their application.

This policy is intended to supplement, but not replace (i) any applicable state and federal laws governing conflicts of interests applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations, or (ii) any provisions of the Association's Articles of Association or Bylaws. If any of the terms of this Policy are inconsistent with applicable state or federal laws, the terms of the governing law shall prevail.

C.Sanctions

Upon determining a Violation (as defined in Paragraph F below) exists under any provision of this Policy, to the extent allowed by law, the Board may impose Sanctions in its discretion as authorized in this Policy, the Association's Articles, the Association's Bylaws, or as otherwise permitted by law.

D.Prohibited Activities

1. <u>Participation and Voting</u>. Except in the exercise of an administrative duty which does not affect the disposition or decision on a matter, no member of the Board or its committees shall participate in or vote on any matter before the Board:

- a. In which the Board or committee member has a personal interest tending to impair the member's independence ofjudgment; or
- b. In which a Board or committee member, his/her spouse, parent, minor child, brother or sister has a personal or business interest.
- 2. <u>Restrictions</u>. No member of the Board or its committees may:
 - a. <u>One Year Prohibition</u>. Within one year following termination of their term, assist or represent another party for Compensation in a case, contract or other specific matter involving the Association or under consideration by the Board if that matter is one in which the member significantly participated while affiliated with the Association;
 - b. <u>Gifts</u>. Solicit or accept any gift for personal benefit from any person or entity who (i) would be affected by the member's vote on a pending or proposed matter, or (ii) that has or is negotiating a contract with the Association;
 - c. <u>Solicitation of Business</u>. Solicit business from any person or entity who would be affected by the member's vote on a pending or proposed matter, or who has or is negotiating a contract with the Association; or
 - d. <u>Confidential Information</u>. Disclose or use confidential information acquired by reason of their position as a member of the Board or its committees for their own gain or that of another.
- 3. Employment; Participation in Compensation Matters. A member of the Board or its Committees, or their immediate family members, may not receive, directly or indirectly, any payment for services rendered or serve as a paid employee of the Association without prior approval of the Board. In the event that such approval is given, the affected member of the Board or its committees who receives Compensation, directly or indirectly from the Association (and if Columbia Association Representative, the Association or the Columbia Association) for services is precluded from participating or voting on any matters pertaining to that member's Compensation.

E. Waiver of Prohibition

Upon resolution of the Board passed by a majority vote upon, the Board may waive any provision of Section D (Prohibited Activities), may authorize a Prohibited Activity, and may authorize participation on a matter before the Board if:

- The Board determines there is an extraordinary circumstance justifying waiving the Prohibited Activity;
- 2. The prohibition on participation leaves the Board or any of its committees with less than a quorum capable of acting;
- 3. The Board or any of its committees is required by law to act, or if the Board or any of its committees is the only one authorized to act.

F. Procedures Regarding Policy Violation and Enforcement.

- 1. <u>Disclosure</u>. Each member of the Board and its committees has the duty to disclose:
 - a. Any Financial Interest the member has;
 - Any actual or potential Conflict of Interest at the time such matters come before the Board or Association, or, if currently pending or under consideration by the Board or Association, immediately upon joining the Board or one of its committees;
 - c. Any Prohibited Activity immediately becoming aware of it; and
 - d. Any violation of any provision of this Policy immediately upon becoming aware of such violation.

2. Reporting and Addressing Violations.

a. <u>Inform Board</u>. If any member of the Board or its committees, or any officer of the Association has reasonable cause to believe that a member of the Board or its committees, or any officer of the Association has failed to make any disclosure required above, or has otherwise violated any provision of this Policy (a "**Violation**"), they shall inform the Board of the basis for such belief in an open, public meeting. The Board shall then inform the person with the alleged Violation of the basis for such alleged Violation during an open, public meeting. Additionally, any member of the Board or its committees may request a legal opinion from the Association's counsel regarding interpretation of the provisions of this Policy and its application.

If any member of the Board or its committees, or any officer of the Association has reasonable cause to believe that the Board Chair has failed to make any disclosure required above or has otherwise violated any provision of this Policy, they shall inform the Village Manager of the basis for such belief. The Village Manager shall then contact the Association's legal counsel, who will inform the Board Chair of the basis for such alleged Violation

- b. <u>Presentation</u>. The individual allegedly committing a Violation shall be given the opportunity to make a presentation describing all material facts and circumstances of the alleged Violation at an open, public meeting of the Board. After the presentation and answering any questions from the Board, the individual may not further participate in the discussion or vote on the alleged Violation, except to respond to inquiries of the Board.
- c. <u>Determination by Board; Action</u>. If, after hearing such person's response to the alleged Violation and after investigating, as it deems reasonably necessary (including consulting counsel), the Board determines by majority vote that such person has committed a Violation, the Board shall take appropriate action and may impose, to the extent permitted by law, such Sanctions as described herein, as permitted under the Association's Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, or as otherwise permitted by law.

The person with the alleged Violation may not participate in discussions or vote establishing a Violation or any Sanction(s) to be imposed in connection therewith, except as described in Paragraph 2 (b) of Section F above.

- d. <u>Sanctions</u>. Following any vote by the Board that there is a Violation, the Board may impose Sanctions it deems reasonably advisable. Such Sanctions shall be determined and announced during an open, public meeting.
- e. <u>Minutes of Proceedings</u>. The minutes of the Board shall contain:
 - The name of person who committed the Violation, the nature of the Violation, any Board action taken as a result of the Violation, including imposition of Sanctions, if any; and
 - ii. The names of the members of the Board and its committees, officer, and Association staff present for discussions and votes taken in connection therewith.

The minutes of such proceedings shall be available to the public and posted on the Association's website.

- **G.** <u>Annual Statements</u>. Each member of the Board and each member of any Board committee shall annually sign the statement attached as <u>Appendix A</u> which affirms that such person:
 - a. Has received, read and understands this Conflict of Interest Policy,
 - b. Has agreed to comply with this Conflict of Interest Policy, and
 - c. Understands that the Association is a social welfare organization and that, in order to maintain its federal taxexemption, it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

H. <u>Periodic Reviews</u>. To ensure the Association operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, the Board shall conduct periodic reviews of transactions, compensation arrangements, and policies to ensure the foregoing are all properly recorded, are in furtherance of charitable purposes, and do not result in the inurement, impermissible private benefit, or in an excess benefit transaction.

This Conflict-of-Interest Policy was adopted by the Board of Directors of the Hickory Ridge Community Association, Inc., a Maryland non-stock corporation exempt from Federal income taxation under Section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code, at a duly called meeting held on February 7, 2022.

EACH MEMBER OF THE BOARD, OFFICER, MEMBER OF EACH COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD AND ASSOCIATION STAFF SHALL SIGN BELOW:

By signing below, I hereby certify and affirm that:

- 1. I have received and read a copy of the Conflict of Interests Policy.
- 2. I agree to comply with the Policy.
- 3. I have no Violations or actual or potential conflicts as described by this Policy or if I do, I have previously disclosed them as required by this Policy or am disclosing them below.
- 4. I understand the Association is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax exemption, it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Disclose on a separate sheet, to the best of your knowledge:

- 1. Any entity in which you have a Financial Interest or in which you participate (as a director, officer, employee, owner, or member) with which the Association (or if Columbia Association Representative, the Association and the Columbia Association) has a relationship;
- 2. Any transaction in which the Association (or if Columbia Association Representative, the Association and the Columbia Association) is a participant as to which you might have a conflicting interest, and
- I,_______, hereby affirm, understand, and agree to comply with the above statement of policy.

3. Any other situation which may pose an actual or perceived conflict of interest.

mply with the above statement of policy.	, 3
Name:	_
Position:	.
Signature	Nate

HICKORY RIDGE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. CONFLICT OF INTEREST PLEDGE

I, (Print Name)		
(Address)		
(Neighborhood)		
(Email)		
(Telephone)		
(1) I DO NOT have any relationships, Conflicts of Interest, or potential Conflicts of Interest to disclose.		
(2) I HAVE a Financial Interest as defined in the Hickory Ridge Community Association, Inc.'s Conflict of Interests Policy which I signed and is filed in the Village Office. My conflict could represent or be perceived to represent a conflict or duality of interest and is disclosed on the attached page.		
It is my understanding that this information will be retained in the files of the Association, will be posted on the Association's public website, and will be available for review by the public. I further understand that this information may be shared with the Association's legal counsel.		
I acknowledge that it is my responsibility to ensure that my disclosure information is current and complete. I agree to update my disclosure records throughout the year ithere are any changes.		
Date		
Signature		



Hickory Ridge Community Association

6175 Sunny Spring, Columbia, Maryland 21044 • 410 730-7327

HICKORY RIDGE COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Responsibility

l,	, a duly elected/appointed member of the Board of
Directors of HICKORY RIDGE CON	MMUNITY ASSOCIATION, Inc. (the "Association"), for the term of
May 1, 2025 – April 30, 2026, do	hereby acknowledge and understand that ensuring the protection
and proper use of the Association	n's assets is my fiduciary responsibility as a Director of the
Association.	
	 Director



Manager's Report May 12, 2025

1. Dates to Note:

- May 13, 6:00pm, Election Committee meeting, virtual
- May 20 & 21, 9:30am, Train Story Time
- May 21, 7:30pm, RAC meeting, virtual
- May 26, Memorial Day, Board meeting cancelled, Village office closed
- June 9, 7:30pm, Board meeting, virtual
- 2. Columbia Card for Columbia Association Assessed Residents: If you live on Columbia Association (CA) assessed property but aren't a CA member, you can request a free Columbia Card to access their facilities at a reduced, pay-as-you-go rate. As a Columbia Cardholder, you'll get discounts at CA's pools, tennis courts, and golf courses, as well as on group fitness classes and kids' programs. SUMMER BONUS: Columbia Cardholders receive 4 single-use guest passes per family on their Columbia Cardholder accounts. These guest passes are automatically added. The passes can be used at any of CA's 23 outdoor pools throughout the summer, Monday Thursday only (excluding Holidays). They cannot be used at other Columbia Association facilities or programs. (https://columbiaassociation.org/sports-recreation/membership/columbia-card/)
- **3. Election Committee:** The Election Committee will meet on Tuesday, May 13, 2025, to review the election process. They will report to the Village Board at the Board meeting on Monday, June 23, 2025, at 7:30pm.
- 4. Block Party Grants: Plan a block party and invite everyone on your street!
 - A total of 15 grants are available for FY26. Each grant is for a \$100 Giant Gift Card.
 - Only one block party grant is allowed each year (except for very long streets, at the Manager's discretion).
 - Everyone on the street must be invited to the party, and a copy of the invitation must accompany the application form.
 - We must have a completed form and invitation before issuing a gift card.
 - The party sponsor must drop off the completed form (with attached invitation) at The Hawthorn Center, Monday through Thursday, 9:30am 5:00pm or Friday, 9:30am 3:30pm. The party sponsor must sign to indicate receipt of the gift card.
- **5. Open Space Issues:** Report issues on CA Open Space via a form on their web site. Photos may be included. It is also helpful to note the location, if possible. Tot lots and bridges are marked with identification numbers. Visit CA's web site here: https://columbiaassociation.org/open-space/contact-us/
- **6. Follow Hickory Ridge:** Find all the ways to connect with <u>Hickory Ridge here</u>:



7. Committee Reports:

- Resident Architectural Committee: The RAC continues to review applications as usual.
- Watershed Advisory Committee: No updates for this meeting.
- Aging Well in Columbia (AWC) at CA: No updates for this meeting.